
Licensing Sub-Committee

Thursday 7 November 2019
10.00 am

Room G06 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Kath Whittam

Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Andrew Weir on 020 7525 7222 or email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk     

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 6 November 2019

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk


Licensing Sub-Committee
Thursday 7 November 2019

10.00 am
Room G06 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. LICENSING ACT 2003: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND 
FLOORS, 516 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

1 - 80

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.



Item No. Title Page No.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to 
Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  6 November 2019



Item No. 
 5.

Classification:
Open

Date:
28 November 2019

Meeting Name
Licensing Sub-Committee

Report title: Licensing Act 2003: Club 701, Basement and Ground 
Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA

Ward(s) or groups affected: Old Kent Road

From: Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers whether it is appropriate to take interim steps 
pending the determination of an application for a summary review, made under Section 
53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by the chief of police for the metropolitan police area, of the 
premises licences issued in respect of the premises known as Club 701, Basement and 
Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA.

2. Notes:

a) Under section 53A(2) of the licensing act 2003 the licensing authority must consider 
interim steps within 48-hours following the submission of an application under 
Section 53A of the licensing act 2003.

b) A copy of the full application and certificate is attached as Appendix B. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3. The Licensing Act 2003 provides a licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with a view 
to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to

 The Act itself
 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the application
 Relevant representations.

1
Agenda Item 5



7. The summary review powers under sections 53A to 53C of the Act allow the police to 
trigger a fast track process to review a premises licence where the police consider that the 
premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder (or both); and the licensing 
authority to respond by taking interim steps quickly, where appropriate, pending a full 
review. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence

8. The premises licence issued in respect of the premises known as Club 701, Basement 
and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA allows licensable activities as 
follows:

 Plays, films, live music, recorded music, performances of dance, entertainment 
similar to live or recorded music, the sale of alcohol to be consumed on the 
premises:

o Wednesday: 22:00 – 02:00
o Thursday to Saturday; 22:00 – 04:00
o Sunday: 22:00 – 01:00

 Late night refreshment (indoors): 

o Wednesday: 23:00 – 02:00
o Thursday to Saturday: 23:00 – 04:00
o Sunday: 23:00 – 01:00

 Opening Hours:

o Wednesday: 22:00 – 03:00
o Thursday to Saturday: 22:00 – 05:00
o Sunday: 22:00 – 02:00.

9. A copy of the current premises licence is attached as Appendix A.

Designated premises supervisor

10. The designated premises supervisor (DPS) of the premises is Mr Alfred Mansaray.

The review application and certificate

11. On 5 November 2019 the Metropolitan Police Service applied to this licensing authority for 
a summary review of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises known as 
Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA. 

12. On 5 November 2019 a Superintendent for the Metropolitan Police Service certified that in 
their opinion the premises are associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both.

13. The application is concerned with a serious incident that took place on 31 October 2019. 
A male victim was found in the smoking area to the rear of club. He was unconscious, 
unresponsive and bleeding from the head. The London Ambulance Service arrived at the 
scene and administered treatment for approximately 45 minutes and subsequently had to 
put the victim into an induced coma.

14. Police officers viewed CCTV of the incident. According to the time stamp on the CCTV the 
incident took place at 02:17, however this is inconsistent with calls made to the 
emergency services meaning that the premises was possibly open past its permitted 

2



closing time, or that calls made to the emergency services were not made until an hour 
after the incident.

15. Police investigations also indicate that the identification scanning system at the premises 
was not working at the time of the incident. This constitutes a possible breach of condition 
342 of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises.

16. CCTV footage shows that some of the people involved in the incident either had hoods up 
or were wearing hats. Condition 373 of the premises licence issued in respect of the 
premises states: “That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst 
inside the venue.”

17. The police state that the incident mainly took place in the smoking area to the rear of club 
and that this area is used as a shisha smoking area. The smoking of shisha using shisha 
coals is not permitted at the premises. The crime report in respect of the incident indicates 
that the use of shisha coals was taking place at the time of the incident.

18. The police contend that the incident took place at a time when the premises were not 
being operated in accordance with an authorisation permitted by the Licensing Act 2003 
and that, if the premises had been closed on time and also operating in accordance with 
the conditions of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises, the incident could 
have been avoided.

19. The police state that they have no confidence in the management of the premises and 
recommend that the following interim step is taken prior to the full review hearing in 
respect of the premises:

 That the licence is suspended until such time that the full licensing review is 
determined.

20. The licensing sub-committee is not restricted to just considering this step.

21. Copies of the review application, review certificate and a witness statement from the 
police in support of the review application are attached to this report as Appendix B.   

The review procedure

22. The current hearing is for the purpose of considering if interim steps are needed as a 
result of the summary review submitted by the police, prior to the pending full review 
hearing that will be held on 28 November 2019.

23. The licensing sub-committee is not obliged to hear evidence from other parties at this 
stage of the procedure. However the premises licence holder and DPS have been invited 
to attend the hearing.

24. The review is currently being consulted on and a public notice is advertised at the 
premises for 10 days. Responsible authorities and any other persons may make 
representations that will then be considered at the full hearing of the licensing sub-
committee.

25. Any interim steps made by the licensing sub-committee at this hearing will cease to have 
effect once the review has been determined.

Operating history

26. A premises licence was issued in respect of the premises to Erico Entertainment Limited 
on 19 February 2016. The licence number was 851424. For reference, a copy of the 
licence is attached to this report as Appendix C.  

3



27. On 8 July 2016 a licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the premises. At the 
induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, as were the role and 
remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed by the DPS is attached 
in Appendix D.

28. On 13 August 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under section 
19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding alleged breaches of licence 
conditions 297, 341, 342 and 297. A copy of the closure notice is attached in Appendix D.

29. On 10 September 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under 
section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding alleged breaches of 
licence conditions 289, 341 and 342. A copy of the closure notice is attached in Appendix 
D.

30. On 23 October 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under section 
19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding an alleged breach of licence 
condition 359. A copy of the closure notice is attached in Appendix D.

31. On 26 November 2016 a second licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the 
premises. At the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, as were 
the role and remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed by the 
DPS is attached in Appendix D.

32. On 2 September 2017 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken. The 
premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 288, 307, 344, 345, 
349, 353, 357, 379, 392, 4AI & 793 of the premises licence issued in respect of the 
premises.  

33. On 14 October 2017 an application to vary the premises licence was submitted.

34. On 11 November 2017 a licensing re-inspection of the premises was undertaken. The 
premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 289, 307, 341, 342, 
364, 377 and 793.  

35. On 19 November 2017 the Metropolitan Police Service visited the premises. The premises 
were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 289 and 373 of the premises 
licence issued in respect of the premises.

36. On 11 January 2018 subsequent to the application to vary the premises licence submitted 
on 14 October 2017, and following a licensing sub-committee hearing, an amended 
premises licence was issued to Erico Entertainment Limited. The new licence number is 
860699. Licence number 860699 is the current premises licence issued in respect of the 
premises and is attached to this report as Appendix A.

37. On 6 July 2018 the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding offences 
under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 2 September 2017 and 11 
and 19 November 2017. A copy of the caution is attached in Appendix D.

38. On 28 August 2018 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a Notification of Alleged 
Offence under the Licensing Act 2003 relating to the unauthorised operation of the 
premises on 28 August 2018. A copy of the notification is attached in Appendix D.

39. On 11 June 2019 the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding offences 
under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 28 August 2018. A copy of 
the caution is attached in Appendix D.

4



40. On 11 June 2019 a third licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the 
premises. At the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, as were 
the role and remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed by the 
DPS is attached in Appendix D.

41. Details of night time visits to the premises by council licensing officers are provided in 
Appendix E.

42. Details of temporary event notices (TENs) submitted in respect of the premises are 
attached as Appendix F.

The local area

43. A map of the local area is attached at Appendix G. 

Southwark Council statement of licensing policy

44. Council Assembly approved Southwark’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2021 on 
27 March 2019. The policy came into effect on 28 March 2019. Sections of the statement 
that are considered to be of particular relevance to the sub-committee’s consideration are:

 Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing 
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in 
determining licence applications.

 Section 5 - Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting.

 Section 6 - Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s approach 
to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current special policy areas 
and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To be read in conjunction 
with Appendix B to the policy.

 Section 7 - Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises and 
(planning) area classification.

 Section 8 - The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

 Section 9 - Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of the 
second licensing objective.

 Section 10 - The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on the 
promotion of the third licensing objective.

 Section 11 - The protection of children from harm. This provides general guidance 
on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

45. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to applicants 
what considerations will be taken into account when determining applications and should 
act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the applications. However, the sub-
committee must always consider each application on its own merits and allow exceptions 
to the normal policy where these are justified by the circumstances of the application.

Resource implications

5



46. There is no fee associated with this type of application. 

Consultation

47. The premises licence holder has been informed of the application for review and of the 
details of the interim hearing.

Community impact statement

48. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits with all 
relevant matters taken into account.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

49. The sub-committee is asked to consider interim steps following an application to review 
the premises licence under Section 53A of the licensing act 2003.

50. The principles, which sub-committee members must apply, are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

51. The licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider interim steps within 48 hours of 
receiving an application for review of a premises licence where.

 The application is properly made in accordance with Section 53A of the Act.
 The licensing authority has considered the ground(s) of review to be relevant to the 

licensing objective for prevention of crime and disorder.

52. The four licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The protection of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

53. Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance. The authority must, having 
regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of the following 
steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps 
are to:

 Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any condition
 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence
 Remove the designated premises supervisor
 Suspend the premises licence.

54. The steps will remain in place until the review application is determined at a full hearing of 
the licensing sub-committee.

55. The authority may decide to take no action is if it finds no interim steps are appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives.

56. In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the authority must direct its mind to 
the causes or concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate 
and proportionate response.

6



57. It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a 
licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the application for review.

Reasons

58. Where the authority takes interim steps an application for review it must notify the 
determination and reasons why for making it to:

 The holder of the licence
 The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which the premises 

are situated.

Hearing procedures

59. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine its 
own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is required 
for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other person 
appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to 
exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant:

 
o To the particular application before the committee
o To the licensing objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public from 
all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place 
in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may take 
into account documentary or other information produced by a party in support of 
their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing 
or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing. 

60. This matter relates to the review of the premises licence under section 53A of the 
Licensing Act 2003.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

61. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has 
multiple roles.  Council officers from various departments have been asked to consider the 
application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible respectively for 
environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as the planning authority.

7



62. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion solely 
to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-judicial capacity, 
and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing of the application.   In 
this case, members should disregard the council’s broader policy objectives and role as 
statutory authority in other contexts. Members must direct themselves to making a 
determination solely based upon the licensing law, guidance and the council’s statement 
of licensing policy.

63. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits.  The sub-committee must take into account only relevant factors, 
and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that is to say 
material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of relevant facts, or 
the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future event, the occurrence of 
which would be relevant.  The licensing sub-committee must give fair consideration to the 
contentions of all persons entitled to make representations to them.

64. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises if they 
are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open.  The proprietors do 
not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same to be relevant.  
However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises being open, then the 
evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is that the licensing authority 
will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed 
premises on members of the public, living, working or engaged in normal activity in the 
area concerned.

65. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to declare 
personal and prejudicial interests.  The code applies to members when considering 
licensing applications.  In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to 
avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

66. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been raised 
through representations from interested parties and responsible authorities. Interested 
parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a case to case 
basis.

67. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub committee needs to consider the balance 
between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the application 
when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section 17 Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder 
in the borough.

68. There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court against the licensing authority’s 
decision regarding the setting of interim steps at this stage.

Guidance

69. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in carrying out 
the functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not cover every possible 
situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully understood, members 
may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  Full reasons must be given if this is the 
case.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

70. The head of community safety and enforcement has confirmed that the costs of this 
process are borne by the service.

8



REASONS FOR LATENESS

71. When an application for an expedited summary review is received from the police under 
section 53a of the Licensing Act 2003 the council’s licensing authority has a statutory duty 
hold a hearing within 48 hours from receipt of the application to consider interim steps that 
may be placed on the premises licence until such time as the application can be fully 
determined.

REASONS FOR URGENCY

72. The council has a statutory duty under section 53a to hold an interim hearing within 48 
hours of receipt of a summary review.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Background Papers  Held At Contact

 Licensing Act 2003
 Home Office Revised  Guidance 
 to the Act
 Secondary Regulations
 Southwark Statement of    
 Licensing Policy
 Case file

 C/O Southwark Licensing,   
 Community Safety &  
 Enforcement, 3rd Floor Hub C,
 160 Tooley Street
 PO Box 64529
 SE1 5LX

 Mrs Kirty Read
Phone Tel:02075255748

APPENDICES

 Name  Title
 Appendix A  Copy of current premises licence (licence number 860699)
 Appendix B  Copies of the review application, review certificate and witness 

statement in support of the review application
 Appendix C  Copy of the previous premises licence issued in respect of the 

premises (licence number 851424)
 Appendix D  Copies of documents relating to the operating history of the   

 premises
 Appendix E  Details of licensing unit night time visits to the premises
 Appendix F  Details of temporary event notices submitted in respect of the 

 premises
 Appendix G  Map of local area

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Caroline Bruce, Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure
Report Author Wesley McArthur, Principal Licensing Officer

Version Final
Dated 5 November 2019

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 6 November 2019

9



APPENDIX A 

Premises licence number 860699 

 Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Club 701 
Basement And Ground Floors 

516 Old Kent Road 

Ordnance survey map reference (if  applicable): 177968534180 

Post town 

London 

Post code 

SE1 5BA 

Telephone number 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Plays - Indoors 
Films - Indoors 
Live Music - Indoors 

Recorded Music - Indoors 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 

Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The opening hours of the premises  
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Wednesday  22:00 - 03:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 05:00 

Friday  22:00 - 05:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 05:00 
Sunday  22:00 - 02:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 

Regulatory Services 

Licensing Unit 
Hub 1, 3rd Floor 

PO Box 64529 

London, SE1P 5LX 

10



Page 2 of 14 

Plays - Indoors 
Wednesday      22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday     22:00 - 04:00 

Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday      22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday      22:00 - 01:00 

Films - Indoors 
Wednesday      22:00 - 02:00 

Thursday     22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday      22:00 - 04:00 

Sunday      22:00 - 01:00 

Live Music - Indoors 

Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 

Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Recorded Music - Indoors 
Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 

Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 

Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 

Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 

Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 

Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Wednesday  23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  23:00 - 04:00 

Friday      23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    23:00 - 01:00 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
Wednesday  23:00 - 02:00 

Thursday  23:00 - 04:00 
Friday      23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  23:00 - 04:00 

Sunday    23:00 - 01:00 

11



Page 3 of 14 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 

licence  
Erico Entertainment Limited 
516 Old Kent Road  

London 
SE1 5BA  

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  

09977040 

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  

Alfred Mansaray 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 

supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence No.: 
Authority: 

Licence Issue date: 11/01/2018 

Head of Regulatory Services 
Hub 1, 3rd Floor 

PO Box 64529 
London, SE1P 5LX 

020 7525 5748 

licensing@southwark.gov.uk 

12



Page 4 of 14 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -  

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or 

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal 

Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who 

holds a Personal Licence. 

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals 

to - 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public 

or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 

a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase 

and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of 

undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 

to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person 

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where 

it is reasonably available. 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must  ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either 

13



Page 5 of 14 

(a) a holographic mark; or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

489 The responsible person shall ensure that - 

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other 

than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures - 

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 

(ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 

customer is made aware that these measures are available, 

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979;  

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D x V), where- 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence - 

(i) the holder of the premises licence: 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;  

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually 

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day

("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 

change to the rate of duty or value added tax; 

14



Page 6 of 14 

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

15



Page 7 of 14 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during 

licensed entertainment. 

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will 

record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial 

image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the 

bar and smoking areas. 

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately 

available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request.  

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use 

at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation.  

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as 

soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is 

practicable to do so. 

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the 

premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once 

completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed 

on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire. 

305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting that  patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to 

neighbours. 

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be 

made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be 

responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to 

ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has 

been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy.  

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of 

volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification 

system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most 

exposed noise sensitive premises. 

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music 

is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises will be 

gradually increased until the premises are fully lit.  

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating 

liquor is supplied. 

16



Page 8 of 14 

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is 

trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving 

footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers.  

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be 

installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about 

banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be 

able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at all 

times after 22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the details of all persons 

entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the 

premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's 

details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system. 

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one 

member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able t o retrieve 

data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers.  

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light 

and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened. 

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be 

permitted in the public areas of the venue. 

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as 

soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book. 

This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised offi cers on 

request. 

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed 

to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from the 

premises. 

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound 

escape from the premises.  

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen 

extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the 

external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise 

sensitive premises.  

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time. 

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time. 

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside. 

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all 

times by door supervisors  

17



Page 9 of 14 

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur 

between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs. 

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all 

staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at 

the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or 

police on request. 

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises' closing hours.  

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after 

02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose 

of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises. 

362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst 

working at the premises. 

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they  can easily be seen and read by 

customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft.  

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the 

following occurrences at the premises: 

• Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

• Violence

• Calls to the police or fire brigade

• Abuse of staff and / or customers

• Ejections of people from the premises

• Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

• Refused sales of alcohol

• Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises

• Any other relevant incidents

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each 

incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of 

the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises 

at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to 

officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request. 

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises. 

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the 

search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club.  

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry.  

18



Page 10 of 14 

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be 

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they wi ll be ejected from the premises. 

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at 

the premises. 

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that  

suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No 

attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person  

must be taken and be provided  to the police  In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a 

detailed note shall be made in the incident log. 

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the 

premises. 

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on 

during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person 

being ejected. 

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the 

venue. 

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue.  

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot.  

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or 

refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without  

explanation.  

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff 

employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the 

premises.  

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the 

cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings 

in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club 

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music 

Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises. 

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the 

premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident log. 

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the 

premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary. 

Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and 

regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff.  

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants 

or any other staff employed at the premises. 

19



Page 11 of 14 

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises. 

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers 

stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in 

such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents.  

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempt ing to leave the premises. 

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be 

encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner 

when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such 

behaviour. 

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable 

transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi 

controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member 

and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their 

taxi. 

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and 

shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities.  

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of 

any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers 

whilst they move away from the premises.  

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional 

materials, including the premises' website. 

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats / 

possessions to customers. 

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made 

available to customers on request. 

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701' as submitted on application for this licence 

shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence.  

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted 

opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on 

these days. 

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external 

areas shall remain closed.  

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises 

between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs.  

20



Page 12 of 14 

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol 

request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, 

provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid 

photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any 

Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card. 

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if 

a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area. 

21



Page 13 of 14 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the 

running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place.  

841 That a minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises if the premises 

open before 00:00 hours, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will  

be employed each night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the 

stated opening time of 22:00; after 00:00 hours, a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be 

employed, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. At least two will be  

provided with, and will use, electronic search wands. The electronic search wands shall be used at all times 

that the premises are open in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This 

includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment 

22



Page 14 of 14 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

Licence No. 860699 

Plan No. 01 

Plan Date 11.12.13 

23



Appendix B: copies of the review 
application, review certificate and 
witness statement supporting the 
review application

24



25



26



27



28



29



Page 1 of 15 

APPENDIX C

 Premises licence number 851424 

 Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Club 701 
Basement And Ground Floors 

516 Old Kent Road 

Ordnance survey map reference (if  applicable): 177968534180 

Post town: London Post code: SE1 5BA 

Telephone number 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Plays - Indoors 
Films - Indoors 

Live Music - Indoors 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The opening hours of the premises  

For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Wednesday  22:00 - 03:00 

Thursday  22:00 - 05:00 
Friday  22:00 - 05:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 05:00 

Sunday  22:00 - 02:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 

Regulatory Services 

Licensing Unit 
Hub 1, 3rd Floor 

PO Box 64529 

London, SE1P 5LX 

30



Page 2 of 15 

Plays - Indoors 
Wednesday      22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday     22:00 - 04:00 

Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday      22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday      22:00 - 01:00 

Films - Indoors 
Wednesday      22:00 - 02:00 

Thursday     22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday      22:00 - 04:00 

Sunday      22:00 - 01:00 

Live Music - Indoors 

Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 

Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Recorded Music - Indoors 
Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 

Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 

Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 

Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 

Wednesday  22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 04:00 
Friday      22:00 - 04:00 

Saturday  22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    22:00 - 01:00 

Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Wednesday   23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday  23:00 - 04:00 

Friday      23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday    23:00 - 01:00 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
Wednesday  23:00 - 02:00 

Thursday  23:00 - 04:00 
Friday      23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday  23:00 - 04:00 

Sunday    23:00 - 01:00 

31



Page 3 of 15 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 

licence  
Erico Entertainment Limited 
801 Caliifornia Building 

Deals Gateway 
London 
SE13 7SF 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  
09977040 

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  

Alfred Mansaray 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 

supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence No.
Authority: 

Licence Issue date: 08/06/2016 

Head of Regulatory Services 
Hub 2, 3rd Floor 

PO Box 64529 
London, SE1P 5LX 

020 7525 5748 

licensing@southwark.gov.uk 

32



Page 4 of 15 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -  

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or 

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal 

Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who 

holds a Personal Licence. 

107 Any individual carrying out security activities at the premises must be.  

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001; 

or 

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act. 

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals 

to - 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public 

or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant  risk of undermining 

a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase 

and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of 

undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 

to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person 

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where 

it is reasonably available. 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must  ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of 

33



Page 5 of 15 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either 

(a) a holographic mark; or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

489 The responsible person shall ensure that - 

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other 

than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures - 

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 

(ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify  the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 

customer is made aware that these measures are available, 

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979; 

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D x V), where- 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence - 

(i) the holder of the premises licence: 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually 

34



Page 6 of 15 

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day

("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 

change to the rate of duty or value added tax; 

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

35



Page 7 of 15 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during 

licensed entertainment. 

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will 

record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial 

image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the 

bar and smoking areas. 

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days  and shall be made immediately 

available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request. 

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use 

at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. 

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as 

soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is  

practicable to do so. 

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the 

premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once 

completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed 

on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire.  

305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all  patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to 

neighbours. 

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises.  All staff at the premises shall be 

made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be 

responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to 

ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has 

been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy. 

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained,  to ensure the maximum levels of 

volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification 

system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most 

exposed noise sensitive premises. 

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music 

is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises 

will be gradually increased until the premises are fully lit.  

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all  times after 22:00 when intoxicating 

liquor is supplied. 

36



Page 8 of 15 

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is 

trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving 

footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers. 

341 That a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises, one of whom 

shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be employed each night that the premises 

are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated opening time of 22:00. At least two will 

be provided with, and will use, electronic search wands in respect of the search of all  persons who wish to 

enter the premises. This includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment. 

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be 

installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about  

banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be 

able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at  

all times after 22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the details of all persons 

entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the 

premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's 

details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system. 

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one 

member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve 

data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers. 

344 That all staff concerned in the sale or supply of intoxicating liquor shall undertake a recognised training 

scheme for such duties. Records of such training should be kept at the premises and made available for 

inspection to police, council or other authorised officers on request.  

345 That no beverages will be consumed in the smoking area. Patrons will be encouraged to leave this area 

as soon as practicable. At least one member of SIA staff will be situated in the smoking area at all times 

the premises are in operation. 

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light 

and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened.  

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be 

permitted in the public areas of the venue. 

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as 

soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book. 

This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on 

request. 

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed 

to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from 

the premises.  

37



Page 9 of 15 

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound 

escape from the premises.  

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen 

extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the 

external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise 

sensitive premises.  

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time. 

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time. 

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all  patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside. 

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all 

times by door supervisors 

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur 

between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs. 

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all 

staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall  be kept at 

the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or 

police on request. 

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises’ closing hours. 

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after 

02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose 

of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises. 

360 That customers permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises to smoke must be 

restricted to a designated smoking area. No more than 7 customers will be permitted to remain in the 

designated smoking area at any one time. 

361 That all security staff employed at the premises will hold a current  valid SIA license. 

362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst 

working at the premises. 

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they  can easily be seen and read by 

customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft. 

38



Page 10 of 15 

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the 

following occurrences at the premises: 

• Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

• Violence

• Calls to the police or fire brigade

• Abuse of staff and / or customers

• Ejections of people from the premises

• Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

• Refused sales of alcohol

• Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises

• Any other relevant incidents

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time,  date, location and description of each 

incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of 

the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises 

at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall  be made available to 

officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request. 

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they  can easily be seen and read by 

customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises. 

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the 

search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club. 

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry. 

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be 

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises.  

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at 

the premises. 

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that 

suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No 

attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person 

must be taken and be provided  to the police  In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a 

detailed note shall be made in the incident log. 

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the 

premises. 

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on 

during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person 

being ejected. 

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the 

venue. 

39



Page 11 of 15 

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue. 

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot. 

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or 

refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without 

explanation.  

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff 

employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the 

premises. 

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags  and coats must be left in the 

cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings 

in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club 

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music 

Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises. 

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the 

premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident  

log. 

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the 

premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary.  

Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and 

regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff. 

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants 

or any other staff employed at the premises. 

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises. 

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers 

stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in 

such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents. 

385 That towards the end of trade on each day announcements will be made via the premises' PA system 

requesting that customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner and reminding customer that 

they cannot take drinks outside of the premises. 

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises. 

387 That patrons will be requested to leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner. 

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be 

encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner 

when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such 

40



Page 12 of 15 

behaviour. 

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable 

transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi 

controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member 

and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their 

taxi. 

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until  all customers have dispersed and 

shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities. 

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of 

any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers 

whilst they move away from the premises.  

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional 

materials, including the premises' website. 

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats / 

possessions to customers. 

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport  options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made 

available to customers on request. 

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701' as submitted on application for this licence 

shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence. 

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted 

opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on 

these days. 

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external 

areas shall remain closed. 

426 That customers must be at least 21 years old to gain entry to the premises. 

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises 

between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs. 

41



Page 13 of 15 

 

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises  requiring that staff selling alcohol 

request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol,  

provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid 

photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and 

any Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card. 

4AI That a register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and shall include the time 

and date of any refused sale of alcohol, the reason the sale was refused and the name of the member of 

staff who refused the sale. The register shall be clearly and legibly  marked on the front cover as a register of 

refused sales, with the address of the premises and with the name and address of the licence holder. The 

register shall be made immediately available for inspection at the premises to council or police officers on 

request.  

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if 

a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area. 

 

42



Page 14 of 15 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   

793 That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol or the operation of the premises under this licence shall be 

trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and trained in respect of the full terms and 

conditions of this licence. Records pertaining to such training shall be kept and be accessible at the 

premises at all times and will be updated every six months. The training records shall include the trainee's 

name (in block capitals), the trainer's name (in block capitals), the signature of the trainee, the signature of 

the trainer, the date(s) of training, a basic summary of what the training inc luded and a declaration that the 

training has been received. The training records shall be made immediately available to officers of the police 

and / or the council upon request. 

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the 

running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place. 

43



Page 15 of 15 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

Licence No. 851424 

Plan No. 01 

Plan Date 11.12.13 

44



APPENDIX D45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



APPENDIX E 

Date Time Officer Notes 

05/03/2016 23:25 Farhad Chowdhury Notice check photo taken notice displayed. 

08/07/2016 22:56 Wesley McArthur I undertook an induction with the premises' DPS Alfred Mansaray. Induction sheet signed by 
Mr. Mansaray. 

16/09/2016 23:15 Alexander Lisowski Venue visited at 23.15pm, Friday, 16th September, 2016, with Adam Burchett (Markets) and 
NTE Police. The owner, Mr Doe, and the DPS were present.  Doe stated that the venue 
wasn't open yet.  However, although there weren't any customers present, the front door was 
open and manned by SIA staff.  The search arch by the front door was switched on and there 
was lighting on in the public area of the bar. Following breaches of the licence were found: 
Only 4 SIA staff, instead of the 6 required by the licence, were present. Two of the SIA staff 
are meant to have search wands.  None of them had a search wand.  There were 2 search 
wands at the venue in a cupboard away from the front door. Each day, all the SIA staff 
working at the venue are meant to be recorded on the ID scanning system.  At the time of my 
visit they weren’t logged on. The venue is meant to have a drugs & weapons amnesty box of a 
design approved by the Police. The one they had was not approved by the Police.  Doe stated 
that he had informed Police of 3 possible designs he was prepared to buy, but was awaiting 
the approval of the Police. 

26/11/2016 01:30 Richard Kalu Visit to premises with Farhad Chowdhury. Licensing induction completed with management 
DPS of the premises Alfred Mansaray. When we arrived there was X2 male SIA members of 
staff and X1 female member of staff on the door. Club scan was operational and we witnessed 
club scan being used. The entry of scanned patrons was checked and found to be compliant 
ATOV. We entered the premises and identified ourselves to the DPS Alfred Mansaray who 
was on site and completed the licensing induction. Words of advice given in relation to the 
incident record book and I advised that this needed to be updated every time there was the 
refusal of sale of alcohol. I have also advised the DPS that the premises licence required 
additional SIA staff to be present on site when the premises was operational. The DPS 
advised me that a visit had been carried out by the Police last weekend and that no issues in 
relation to the licence had been raised. Club scan was operational and CCTV was operational 
and he did not understand why we were at the premises to check the same thing again. The 
DPS raised concern that the premises was receiving a higher than average amount of visits. I 

71



advised him that the Night Time Economy worked over the weekends so it was likely as a 
major venue in the borough that he would receive visits from various responsible authorities to 
check compliance as this was done jointly and independently as we were all checking various 
aspects to ensure compliance with the licensing Act 2003. Management welcomed the visits 
and advised us that his door was open and that he did not mind the visits, however it caused 
tension with patrons when there was a visible police presence. I advised management that he 
should use this as assurances to patrons that they were safe and that the premises was being 
monitored. The DPS enquired about some of the conditions on the premises licence and 
enquired about how he could get some of the conditions removed as they were some what 
confusing due to the numbers of conditions placed on the licence which essentially meant the 
same thing. CCTV checked and found to be compliant. There was a comprehensive CCTV 
system in place at the premises and all entry points covered by cameras. The DPS was fully 
conversant in the licensing hours of trade and conditions on licence. X6 patrons were in the 
premises when we left the premises and I will be scheduling a repeat visit to the premises 
when they fully operational. 

03/12/2016 02:15 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Ken Andrews. Arrived at the premises and parked up just at the front of 
the premises. Noted X2 SIA members of staff just at the entrance of the premises and X1 
female SIA member of staff. Noted X8 patrons leave the premises within a 10 min period 
however we did not witness and new entry into the premises. I note that there was large group 
of patrons waiting to gain entry into K-CHE. 

04/12/2016 02:00 Natasha O’Donogue              Attended premises with Ken Andrews to ascertain if allowing entry after the permitted time of 
02.00hrs, observed a queue of approx. 10 people to get into the premises, SIA staff seen 
1xfemale and 3x male. Spoke to DPS Alfred Mansaray, ID scanner in operation. Advised of 
reason for visit and to ensure that after 02:00 shall be no new entry to premises, he did say 
that they shut the barrier / gate at 02:00 to make sure no one else can enter. Smoking area is 
at the back of the premises and he said they close the club at 04:00 hrs, capacity is 400 was 
about 150 people in at time of visit. 

10/12/2016 02:20 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Adam Burchett. X3 SIA staff stood at the front of the premises. X1 SIA 
member of staff stood at the front of the premises with a metal detector. X1 of the SIA 
members of staff stood at the front of the premises was a female SIA member of staff. Front 
doors were closed by SIA staff then they went into the premises. No patrons located at the 
front of the premises. 

07/01/2017 02:30 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Sue Hunter. Premises closed ATOV. 

26/08/2017 03:05 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Farhad Chowdhury. Full licensing inspection carried out with Alfred 
Mansaray. Arrived at premises and no audible amplified music could be heard outside the 

72



premises. X4 SIA staff at the front of the premises carrying out ID checks before being 
ushered to a whole in the wall where club scan was being operated from. X 2 patrons waiting 
to gain entry into the premises who were checked by SIA staff then allowed entry. Requested 
to speak to management of the premises and SIA staff called out a Mr Alfred Mansaray to the 
front of the premises. Mr Mansaray invited us into the premises which was operational with 
X15 patrons within the premises. X6 patrons were beside the bar some drinking and some 
ordering alcohol. The rest of the patrons were dancing and talking. The premises had a very 
low occupancy and Mr Mansaray asked if we would like to come down to his office. I said that 
would be fine however I would like to have a quick walk around the premises. Amplified music 
was being played and I checked the doors leading to the main street at the side of the 
premises which was closed. X1 SIA security member of staff was located in the smoking area 
however no patrons were located in this area at the time of inspection. We then proceeded to 
go to the basement of the premises to the office room. Within the office were two very large 
monitoring screens which were connected to the CCTV system of the premises. The CCTV 
system had a multi point camera system with HD quality footage being relayed to the viewing 
screens. CCTV recordings for 31 days were in place. No doors of the premises left open or 
ASB activity witnessed ATOV. A white party was taking place in the premises (all patrons 
dressed in white) and it was commented that they did not think the night was going to be very 
busy and they would probably finish early. I was advised that that it was envisaged that there 
would be possibly be 100people attending the premises but it was highly unlikely that this 
would happen. Complaint discussed with Mr Mansaray about sound escape from the 
premises and ASB. Mr Mansaray advised me that his premises was under control and that 
management were acting responsibly to ensure dispersal from the premises was done quickly 
and efficiently. Mr Mansaray advised me that there had been numerous incidents in regards to 
Club located above the 701 club. Mr Mansaray advised me that the sound escape that was 
being complained about was actually coming from the club upstairs as they frequently left their 
doors open and that the club had bad acoustic soundproofing which meant sound travelled. 
Operator has raised concern about some of the conditions which have been placed on the 
licence. Operator would like to discuss the licence and conditions with the responsible 
authorities to tidy up the licence. I have provided my contact details and asked operator to 
contact me next week to discuss. 

02/09/2017 00:20 Wesley McArthur                Visit to the premises with Roy Fielding (RF). I met with the DPS, Alfred Mansaray (AM) and 
the business owner, Eric Doe (ED). I conducted a full inspection. Breaches of the following 
conditions were noted:  
288 – The clock on the CCTV was three minutes slow 

73



307 – No accommodation limit has been set in respect of the premises. There was only an ‘in’ 
clicker being used so there wasn’t an accurate tally of how many persons were at the 
premises; however the premises were very under occupied as only about 20 customers (max’) 
were present ATOV. 
344 - Staff hadn’t undertaken a ‘recognised’ training scheme (I advised ED that I would inform 
him of a suitable training scheme). 
345 – Beverages were being consumed in the smoking area. N.B. it is unlikely that the 
smoking area is compliant with the Smokefree reg's – information to be sent in regards to the 
Smokefree legislation 
349 – Acoustic seals, brushes or self closers were not installed on relevant doors 
353 – Drinks were being permitted outside (in the smoking area)  
357 – There was no dispersal policy 
379 – No pre-opening security checks had been undertaken 
392 – The location of car parks and travel facilities were not identified on all promotional 
materials (see attached flyer) 
4AI – No refusal register was available 
793 – No staff training records were available re’ the LA2003 or the premises licence T&C’s  
On conducting a walk-round of the premises no H&S concerns were noted. The premises 
appeared to be sound and in good repair. The toilets were in good order and no emergency 
routes / exits were obstructed / locked. ED stated that he wanted to vary the licence to remove 
conflicting / superfluous conditions. I briefly advised him of the procedure and told him to 
contact me for more detailed information. 

11/11/2017 00:55 Mark Orton                     Visited premises to re-inspect as a variation application had been submitted.  Also present 
was Matt Bourne, Trading Standards and Sgt Keith Demptser, NTET Police. Approached 
premises and introduced ourselves to the door staff and I ask to speak with the DPS Alfred 
Mansaray who invited us into the premises.  I informed him that I was to inspect the premises 
to ensure compliance as a variation had been submitted. I asked Alfred M how many security 
staff were on duty as when I checked the register only three had signed in. It was evident that 
there was Inadequate SIA provision, with only three on duty ATOV, 2 males and 1 female.  
Upon checking records for previous nights, it was apparent that the provision of SIA has fallen 
short of requirements. DPS stated that as it was quiet on Fridays they only had 3 SIA. I asked 
if he was expecting any more security staff on duty and he stated that no further security staff 
were expected. Search wands were available to security staff. Breach of condition 341 
I had to check whether the CCTV system was working satisfactorily but Alfred M was unable 
to show me as he didn’t have access to the office in the basement where the CCTV system 

74



was accessed from. At this point I asked if there was anyone available who could give me 
access and he stated his manager, Eric Doe could but he wasn’t available as he was out.  
Alfred M called Eric Doe and informed him of our presence and Alfred was able to relay to me 
that his manager would be coming to the premises. (Licensee / Director turned up to premises 
approx. 45 minutes after we arrived and was able to show footage from 13 October 2017 at 
03:00hrs.  Mr Eric Doe stated that there is usually one person present who operates the 
CCTV system if he isn’t there. I asked Mr Doe why he wasn’t there and he stated that his 
partner had just had a baby. I asked what procedure was in place for incidents such as this 
and he became irate and said that people can’t always work all the time. Mr Doe was able to 
operate the CCTV system and show that it holds footage for the required duration of 31 days.  
If Mr Doe hadn’t been able to attend, the CCTV footage would not have been available. 
Breach of condition 289 
I asked to check the ID scan system, and this only showed 4 males as being allowed entry, 
this didn’t tally with patrons (males and females) inside the premises atov. There were two 
staff members in the area used to scan ID, but neither could explain why only 4 patrons had 
been scanned. This also could not be explained by licensee or DPS.  Atov there were 
approximately 20 patrons present, male and female. This did not include members of staff 
working in the bar area, ID scanning area or any of the security staff. Breach of condition 342 
No record keeping of numbers of patrons in the premises atov was provided. I estimated there 
approximately 30 persons including staff members at the premises atov. Breach of condition 
307.  
The training records were very poor, and certainly did not cover all members of staff present. 
No written authorisations for bar staff. In general, record keeping was ad-hoc. Breach of 
condition 793.  
When Alfred M was questioned re. search provisions and “large bags” cloakrooms etc. 
answers were vague as to what constituted a large bag and when bags were allowed into the 
venue. Breach of condition 377.  
The incident book was very poorly filled in and didn’t tally with security log with details of 
incidents.  For example when the security log stated it was busy on a particular date, the 
incident log had no corresponding entry. Breach of condition 364. 
As a note of concern, when Mr Eric Doe returned to the premises after receiving the call from 
the DPS Alfred Mansaray, he was very agitated and stated he was being victimised as other 
officers of the council and the police had visited in the recent past. He suggested that it could 
be because of nature of the premises and it’s mostly African patrons that it was getting 
attention. I responded to Mr Doe that the reason we were present was because of the 

75



variation that had been submitted. Mr Doe was very loud and demonstrative for approx. 5 
minutes. Mr Doe stated that he was a recognised member of the community and had just 
returned from a fund raising event in central London with his partner, who was also present. 
Whilst the inspection was taking place, and the deficiencies in the managing of the premises 
became evident, Mr Doe appeared to become agitated with the DPS, Alfred Mansaray, with 
Mr Doe stating that the DPS should know better and is familiar with how the premises should 
operate. The summary of the licence was present as was the copy of the premises licence. 
Drinks were being served in plastics, no drinks were being consumed outside, barriers were in 
place to assist with crowd control, SIA staff had radio sets available, no customers were seen 
wearing sunglasses or hats, but the DPS was wearing a peaked cap atov. A drugs amnesty 
box was available and the DPS stated that periodically the Police will empty it. I asked if the 
use of the amnesty box is recorded and the DPS stated it was. Left the premises at 02:35. 

22/12/2017 23:54 Farhad Chowdhury               Open seem six SIA door staff outside very quiet tonight. 

07/01/2018 00:08 Andrew Heron                   Closed. 

07/01/2018 23:35 Andrew Heron                   Visit to discuss BBQ - they say that they do not want the man there, and will try to move him 
on as it is their land. Looked at the smoking area - still potentially not compliant as not 50% 
exposed.  Took pictures.  Will take advice from H&S. 

12/01/2018 21:45 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Clarissa O’Toole. Premises closed ATOV. 

19/01/2018 23:45 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with John Uzodinma Okeke. Premises closed ATOV. 

21/01/2018 00:51 Farhad Chowdhury               Closed. 

27/01/2018 01:57 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Clarissa O’Toole. Premises non-operational no activity taking place at 
the premises ATOV. 

14/04/2018 00:45 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises to complete full licensing inspection with Farhad Chowdhury. Arrived at the 
premises and walked up to the main entrance where SIA staff were carrying out security 
checks and processing patrons through the premises club scan system. Myself & Farhad 
Chowdhury identified ourselves to SIA staff at the entrance and asked to speak to the 
manager of the premises. A Mr Alfred Manasary came to the entrance door and asked myself 
and Farhad Chowdhury to come into the premises. When we entered the premises I noted 
that there were approximately X10female patrons within the premises X2 patrons were in the 
middle of the room dancing. We were led down a flight of stairs to the basement of the 
premises and met by A Mr Eric Doe. I advised Mr Doe that it was my intention to carry out a 
full licensing inspection of the premises. Mr Doe began discussing the issue of the shisha area 
at the premises with Farhad Chowdhury. Farhad tried to explain that in order for the shisha 
area to be compliant that it needed to be 50 / 50 i.e. 50 percent of the space needed to be 

76



open. Mr Doe asked myself and Farhad to come to the shisha area as he had done some 
alterations to make it 50/ 50 compliant. I would suggest that minor alterations have been 
completed which is to take a wooden structure wall to the side of the shisha lounge at the front 
side of the premises is still not 50 / 50 compliant. While in the shisha area the door from the 
premises leading to the external shisha area was being opened and closed by patrons 
wishing to smoke. Each time the door was opened a loud burst of amplified bass music would 
travel from within the venue outside. I advised Mr Doe that this was an issue and may be the 
reason why complaints had been received about noise coming from his premises. Mr Doe 
stated that he would now begin to think about installing an acoustic lobby to resolve the issue. 
A full inspection was carried out and the premises was found to be compliant with no 
breaches of the premises licence identified. Observations of the front of the premises did not 
identify any issues of ASB there does however remain an issue in relation to amplified music 
emanating from the premises traveling from the now partially open external shisha area of the 
premises. 

26/05/2018 21:53 Andrew Heron                   Closed. 

31/08/2018 23:30 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Farhad Chowdhury. Premises non-operational ATOV. 

01/09/2018 01:30 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises to check premises to see if patrons are gaining access via a side door. 
Observed premises and no patrons admitted into the premises and no patrons were observed 
being admitted entry into the premises via bypass of club Scan at the front of the premises 
and in breach of a specific condition on the premises licence. No ASB or compliance issues 
noted ATOV. 

13/10/2018 02:43 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Clarissa O’Toole to check premises to see if patrons are gaining access 
via a side door. Arrived at premises and X2patrons outside the premises. Observed premises 
and did not witness any patrons attempting to gain or being allowed to gain access via the 
side door to the premises. 

17/11/2018 22:05 Farhad Chowdhury               Closed. 

15/12/2018 02:34 Richard Kalu                   Visit to premises with Ken Andrews (Principal Environmental Health Officer).  Invite for PACE 
interview with a Mr Alfred Mansaray – hand delivered to him in person. Mr 
Mansaray advised that he will call in on Monday to arrange a PACE interview with Justin 
Williams Licensing Enforcement Officer. 

23/02/2019 21:15 Farhad Chowdhury               Closed. 

24/02/2019 00:31 Farhad Chowdhury               Food hygiene inspection and H&S inspection done looking at the smoking shelter, PC 
Crampton found one nitrous oxide bottle and spoke to manager Alfred Mansaray it was in the 
shisha area the security need to do better door searches.  She said she will do a full 

77



inspection another time. No Major H&S issues needs a new fire extinguisher and service all 
the fire extinguishers. 

13/04/2019 23:20 Charlie Jerrom                 Visit to the premises with Adam Burchett Environmental Officer and Maria O’Mahoney 
Licensing Police to do a full licensing inspection.  2breaches of the licence were found 
conditions 309 and 357. I advised that a warning would follow visit regarding the breaches 
found ATOV. Left the premises at 23:55.Action: Notes to be appended onto APP/Complaint 

13/04/2019 23:20 Charlie Jerrom                 Visit to the premises with Adam Burchett Environmental Officer and Maria O’Mahoney 
Licensing Police to do a full licensing inspection.  2 breaches of the licence were found 
conditions 309 and 357. I advised that a warning would follow visit regarding the breaches 
found ATOV. Left the premises at 23:55. Action: Notes to be appended onto APP/Complaint 

04/05/2019 01:30 Charlie Jerrom                 I Adam Burchett and Tracey Crampton drove past club 701 to check if the barbeque seller 
was operating outside, the outside was quiet and only had SIA door staff for the two premises. 
Action: Append to APP 

19/05/2019 00:37 Farhad Chowdhury               Closed. 

25/05/2019 00:50 Farhad Chowdhury               Club 701, ground floor 516 Old Kent Road. Revisit to check smoking shelter is compliant with 
the Health Act 2006. The SIA staff got us to sign in a book and to explain the purpose of our 
visit which I completed and explained that police were not happy with the smoking shelter. Mr 
Mansaray took us to the rear area the smoking shelter was all covered almost 90% of the 
surface was covered. They had installed a concertina roof which folds and opens to cover the 
whole roof area. I did not see anyone smoking as they were just opening up. I advised Mr 
Mansaray that the concertina roof which folds should not be used it needs to stay open 
permanently. Something that can be closed is not Smokefree and does not comply with the 
law. Warning advice letter to be sent out. 

28/09/2019 23:35 Farhad Chowdhury               Closed. 

 

78



APPENDIX F

Date Ref. Start date End date Time Maximum 

attendees 

Alcohol? Entertainment? Late 

refreshment? 

MPS 

objection? 

EPT 

objection? 

Counter 

notice? 

16/08/2017 860080 28/08/2017 29/08/2017 23:00 - 
04:00 

300 Yes Yes Yes No No 

24/11/2017 861178 10/12/2017 11/12/2017 23:00 - 
03:00 

300 Yes Yes Yes No No 

05/10/2018 865190 13/10/2018 14/10/2018 23:00 - 
05:00 

300 No No No Yes No 

16/10/2018 865422 28/10/2018 29/10/2018 23:00 - 
04:00 

300 Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes, as it 
was a late 
TEN. 

01/11/2018 865669 17/11/2018 18/11/2018 23:30 - 
05:00 

300 Yes No No Yes No No. 
Application 
rejected as 
it was not 
full and 

proper. 
06/12/2018 866192 24/12/2018 25/12/2018 23:00 - 

05:00 
350 Yes Yes Yes No No 

31/01/2019 866741 17/02/2019 18/02/2019 01:00 - 
03:00 

150 Yes Yes Yes No No 

12/06/2019 868529 06/07/2019 07/07/2019 04:00 - 
05:00 

350 Yes Yes Yes No No 

07/08/2019 869364 26/08/2019 27/08/2019 23:00 - 
04:00 

300 Yes Yes Yes No No 

79



��������	
���
�
�������
�
�����
���������
���
�������
�����
����
��
�������� �!�"
#�����
�$�����
%��$
&���	

APPENDIX G

80



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019-20

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to 
Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Members

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair)
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Kath Whittam

Reserve

Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE

1
1
1

By email

Officers

Joanne Shilton, legal team
Wesley McArthur, licensing team
P.C. Graham White, Metropolitan 
Police Service
P.C. Ian Clements, Metropolitan Police 
Service

Andrew Weir (spares)                          

Total printed copies: 8     

Dated: 6 November 2019

1
1

By email

By email

3


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA
	Appendix A: Premises licence
	Appendix B: Review application
	Appendix C: Previous premises licence
	Appendix D: Operating history documents
	Appendix E: Night time economy team visits
	Appendix F: Temporary events notices
	Appendix G: Map

	 



